
                               Posted 3.12.2021 at 11:00am by JAD 
                                        SELECT BOARD 
                   AGENDA 
             Tuesday, March 16, 2021 
                      6:30pm      
 

The Select Board Regular Meeting is being held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order 
Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20. Interested individuals can listen in and 
participate by phone and/or online by following the link and phone # below. 
 
UpperTH ProWebinar is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: Select Board 
Time: Mar 16, 2021 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81460211136?pwd=UWlxQzM0clVha1BuaVJQT0ZOeTZOUT09 
 

Meeting ID: 814 6021 1136 
Passcode: 426148 
 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kX5Z9bsj 
Find your local number:  
Dial by your location    Find your local number:  
+1 253 215 8782 US    One tap mobile  
+1 301 715 8592 US    +13126266799,,123906012# US (Chicago)  

+19294362866,,12390012# US (New York)  
 

Agenda Items 
 

1) Energy Advisory Committee will discuss electric car charging stations and provide an update on the  
     Stretch Code status (6:30) 
2) Discuss Finance Committee recommendations (6:50) 
3) Public Communication (7:05) 
4) Approve minutes of 3/2 (7:10) 
5) Action/Discussion items: (7:15) 

a) Acknowledge and vote to endorse proclamation for Tony Shaw 
b) Vote to endorse Inter-Municipal Agreement for a regional housing consultant 
c) Discuss need for a temporary Moderator for the May 15th Annual Town Meeting  
d) Act on request for the town wide clean up  
e) Discuss any actions required for the Senior Tested Exemption  
f) Review and discuss Town Diversity Statement  
g) Review draft charge for Revenue Ideation Committee  

6) Select Board Reports 
7) Presentation from Commonwealth Fusion Systems (8:00)  

Click here  to read an article in the Devens News about this new company coming to Devens. 
   
 

Next Regular Select Board Meeting 
    Tuesday, April 6, 2021 

7:00pm        
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81460211136?pwd=UWlxQzM0clVha1BuaVJQT0ZOeTZOUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kX5Z9bsj
https://www.devenscommunity.com/news/mit-energy-startup-homes-in-on-fusion-with-plans-for-47-acre-site-in-devens/?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Devens%20Weekly%20News%20352021&utm_content=Devens%20Weekly%20News%20352021+CID_c065179af604e2153f1c970ccbc076c2&utm_source=Email%20via%20Campaign%20Monitor&utm_term=Continue%20reading


 CT4000 Family
ChargePoint® Level 2 Commercial Charging Stations 

The CT4000 family is the latest generation of ChargePoint 

commercial charging stations. Refined yet rugged, these stations 

set the industry standard for functionality and aesthetics.

The CT4000 full motion color LCD display instructs drivers and supports dynamic 
updates of custom branded videos and advertisements.

Intelligent power management options double the number of parking spaces 
served by allowing two charging ports to share a single circuit. Sites with single 
port EV stations can upgrade to dual port stations without requiring additional 
electrical services.

The CT4000 is the first ENERGY STAR® certified EV charger because it charges 
efficiently and conserves power when not charging. As an ENERGY STAR certified 
EV charger, the CT4000 uses significantly less energy than a standard EV charger 
when in standby mode to help you save money on your utility bill.

All CT4000 models offer one or two standard SAE J1772™ Level 2 charging ports 
with locking holsters, each port supplying up to 7.2kW. With this standard 
connector, ChargePoint level 2 stations can charge any EV.

Stations are available in bollard and wall mount configurations for easy installation 
anywhere. All stations are fully software upgradeable remotely over the air.

Stations come in both 6' and 8' tall models with 18' and 23' cords, respectively. 
With multiple options for size and cord reach, your station can service up to four 
parking spaces, reach all car models regardless of parking style or car sizes and 
increase the usability of your EV spots. 

Driver Friendly User Interface
 + Instructional video shows how to use the station

 + Multi-language: English, French, Spanish

 + Touch button interface; works in rain, ice and with gloves

 + Backed by ChargePoint’s world class 24/7 driver phone support

Easily Communicate with Your Drivers
Whether you’re a retail establishment wanting to advertise your latest product,  
a workplace looking to communicate with employees or a municipality wanting 
to welcome visitors, ChargePoint’s prominent LCD screen makes it easy to reach  
EV drivers:

 + Daylight readable, with auto brightness control

 + 640 X 480 resolution active matrix

 + Full motion 30fps video support

 + Upload up to 60 seconds of high quality video on a color LCD screen 
to individual stations as often as desired

 + Brand your charging stations to communicate with drivers

 + Instructional video in English, Spanish or French

The First  
ENERGY STAR®  
Certified EV Charger



ChargePoint CT4000 Family

2   chargepoint.com

Service Products and Support
ChargePoint offers world-class service products and support 
that help ensure quality of work, save time and money, protect your 
investment and enhance the productivity of your charging stations. 
From site planning to installation and setup, to ongoing care and 
management, when you choose ChargePoint, you’re covered.

 + ChargePoint Configuration and Activation: customized setup 
and activation of your stations

 + ChargePoint Assure: the most comprehensive EV Station 
maintenance and management in the industry

Energy Measurement and Management
 + Real-time energy measurement

 + 15 minute interval recording

 + Time of Day (TOD) pricing

 + Load shed by percentage of running average or 
to fixed power output

Minimize Costs with Flexible Power  
Management Options
In the vast majority of applications, a full power configuration is 
the best choice for both station owners and drivers. However, 
when drivers are parked for a longer time, an intelligent, lower 
power output can save station owners considerable installation 
cost while still providing drivers a great charging experience.  
With flexible power options, station owners can meet the needs 
of drivers while lowering costs:

Power Select (Patent Pending)
 + Allows for a lower capacity (less than 40A) circuit to power 

each port

 + Cuts installation costs by reducing the cost or even avoiding 
the need to upgrade panels or transformers

Power Sharing
 + Dynamically share one 40A, 30A or 20A circuit between two 

parking spaces

 + Doubles the number of parking spots served while reducing 
installation and operating costs

 + Allows station owners to upgrade a single port station to dual 
port to serve more drivers with no electrical upgrade

Clean Cord Technology
 + Keep charging cords off the ground 

 + Standard on all models

 + Ultra-reliable second-generation gravity operated mechanism

 + Flexible over entire -40°F to +122°F product temperature range

Safe, Reliable, Energy Efficient Hardware 
 + UL listed, meeting the stringent requirements of the nation’s 

leading safety standards organization

 + Stations are rugged, built to withstand the elements

 + Safe, Reliable and Energy Efficient

 + ENERGY STAR certified, charges efficiently and conserves 
power when not charging

Strong and rugged design 
materials built to withstand 
the elements.

Ultra-reliable second-generation 
gravity operated mechanism.

18' and 23' cords to reach all 
car models and serve more 
parking spaces.

World-class 24/7 driver 
phone support.

Driver interaction is supported 
in any weather by five rugged, 
back-lit buttons with audio 
feedback.

Instructional video shows 
how to use the station. 
Multi-language charging 
instructions, giving drivers 
the choice of English, 
French or Spanish.

CT4000 stations come 
with 18' or 23' cords to 
increase the usability 
of your charging spots, 
on 6' and 8' tall models 
respectively.

CT4021   
Dual-port bollard charging station with 18' 
charging cables. Standard EV Charging Only 
sign without optional custom branding. 

When Charging is Mission Critical,  
Protect Your Investment with ChargePoint Assure

 + Minimize downtime: ChargePoint Assure provides the most 
comprehensive EV Station maintenance and management in 
the industry

 + Get up and running quickly and flawlessly: Professional 
guidance for station configuration saves you time, and 
unlimited changes to station policies flexibly supports 
your business

 + Eliminate unexpected future expenses: Cost for parts and 
on-site labor to install is covered for all Assure eligible repairs

 + One less thing to worry about: Proactive station monitoring 
provides you with regular reporting

 + Reduced risk of downtime: We guarantee 98% annual uptime 
and one business day response to requests

 + Support when you need it: We’re there for you and your 
drivers. Phone support available for station owners Monday 
to Friday from 5 AM to 6 PM Pacific. Phone support for  
drivers is 24/7/365, so you never need to field a driver call



chargepoint.com    3

Easily customizable branding area.

All stations come with EV Charging Only 
sign, which can be replaced with your  

custom signage. 

OPTIONAL: 
Additional customizable branding areas. 

All stations have standard extrusions to 
hold your custom signage. 

Artwork templates and material 
specifications are conveniently 

downloadable from chargepoint.com 

5.7" color LCD display for customizable  
video content. 

Upload up to 60 seconds of high 
quality video to individual stations as 

often as desired.

Daylight readable with auto  
brightness control.

Branded CT4021   
Shown with optional 
branding on bollard. 
18' cords on 6' model.  

Branded CT4025  
Shown with optional 
branding on back. 
23' cords on 8' model.  

Promote Your Brand and Business

Having your stations installed in a visible location makes a bold statement about your 
business’ commitment to sustainability and shows that you care about your customers. 
ChargePoint CT4000 stations are built for customization so you can conveniently 
promote your brand as well. With custom signage and video you can:

 + Increase brand recognition

 + Attract EV drivers by making sure your stations are highly visible

 + Ensure EV charging installations are consistent with the look and feel of your brand

 + Differentiate your stations from standard ChargePoint stations to make them easily 
identifiable by your driver base



ChargePoint CT4000 Family

ChargePoint, Inc.  
240 East Hacienda Avenue 
Campbell, CA 95008-6617 USA

+1.408.841.4500 or 
+1.877.370.3802 US and Canada toll-free

chargepoint.com
Listed by Underwriters 

Laboratories Inc.

Bollard Charging Stations

Wall Mount Charging Stations

CT4021CT4011 CT4025

CT4023CT4013 CT4027

Contact Us
        Visit chargepoint.com

        Call +1.408.705.1992

        Email sales@chargepoint.com

Copyright © 2021 ChargePoint, Inc. All rights reserved. CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered trademark/service mark, and an EU registered logo mark 
of ChargePoint, Inc. All other products or services mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks 
of their respective owners. BR-CT4000-06. January 2021. PN 73-001061-02-1.











Select Board Minutes                                                     1                                                            March 2, 2021 
 

Select Board Minutes  
Tuesday, March 2, 2021  

7:00pm 
 

The Select Board Regular Meeting was held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive 
Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20.  

Select Board participants:  
Alice von Loesecke, Stu Sklar, Lucy Wallace, Rich Maiore, Kara Minar  

Town Department attendees:  
Town Administrator Tim Bragan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director Marie Sobalvarro and 
Executive Assistant Julie Doucet 

Additional participants: 
CPC members John Lee, Michelle Catalina, Beth Williams and Chair Didi Chadran,  
Historical Commission member Manny Lindo and Chair Pam Marston 
Finance Committee Chair Don Ludwig, School Committee Chair SusanMary Redinger 
 
Chair Alice von Loesecke opened the meeting with a tribute to longtime resident and co-owner of the 
Harvard Press who recently passed away, Worth Robbins.  Lucy Wallace said the 40 year resident is a 
great loss to the community. His dedication and humble approach to all he did was unique and benefited 
the town in many ways. He will surely be missed. 
 

Community Preservation Committee (CPC) recommendations 
CPC member John Lee reported on the grant applications submitted to the CPC. He reviewed their 
funding recommendations below: 
 

Requesting Organization 
Application/ 
Funding Title 

Requested 
Amount CPC Vote 

Athletic Field Planning 
Subcommittee 

Bare Hill Pond Woods 
Feasibility Study $20,000 Decline to fund 

Athletic Field Planning 
Subcommittee Harvard Park Feasibility Study $30,000 Decline to fund 

Community Preservation 
Committee CPC Administrative Fees $2,500 Transfer from CPC unrestricted 

reserves to CPC Admin fund 

Community Preservation 
Committee 

Transfer to Affordable Housing 
Reserve $33,800 

Transfer from CPC unrestricted 
reserves to CPC Affordable Housing 
Reserve fund 

Conservation Commission 
Community Harvest Project 
Agricultural Preservation 
Restriction 

$150,000 Fund in full 

Parks & Recreation 
Commission Boat Kiosk Upgrade $5,000 Fund in full 

Select Board Town Hall Preservation Debt $48,000 Fund in full 

Town Clerk Preservation of Town 
Documents $25,000 Fund in full 

 



Select Board Minutes                                                     2                                                            March 2, 2021 
 

Lee explained the requests from the Athletic Field subcommittee were decline due to minimal support 
from the community. The CPC recommended they come back with better planning.  Chair Didi Chadran 
will correct the final figures and resend as an error was found. 
 
Historical Commission presentation on the Shaker Herb House  
Member Manny Lindo acknowledged the team of excellent volunteers he worked with to prepare this 
study: Richard & Carolyn Dabrowski, Sadie Keiran, Olivia Lindo, Nickolas Thornton (high school students) 
and local tradesman specializing in historical projects Robert Adam.  
 

Lindo gave a brief introduction about the building and its importance to the town.  He explained the 
report includes exterior envelope and interior assessments, required repairs and estimated costs. Lindo 
said the study also includes a section about possible ways or repurposing the building. At this time, the 
commission is seeking support from the Select Board on this project as they apply for state grant funding 
to help with restoration costs. Commission Chair Pam Marston explained the CPC deadline did not align 
with completion of the study therefore making the timelines complicated since the grant application is 
due by March 19th. Kara Minar asked about the concerns highlighted in a letter from resident Mark 
Sevigny. Lindo acknowledged their differing views on the best approach and most cost effective way to 
restore the building.  Lucy Wallace expressed her support for the general concept to preserve the 
building as best we can and applauds efforts of the commission to attain state grant funding. By a roll 
call vote, Wallace – aye, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke – aye, the board voted 
unanimously to support the concept to preserve the building. 
 
Finance Committee budget recommendations 
Committee Chair Don Ludwig thanked everyone for their hard work during this challenging budget year. 
He was happy to report a current budget surplus however they remain cautious until the state budget is 
finalized. Ludwig reviewed the following proposed cuts and additions to the budget: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Cuts

Budgeted Expenses

Election Supplies 6,950$             
Transfer Station Hours 6,600$             
Public Building Oil 2,000$             
Public Building Gas 2,000$             
Transfer Station Controlled Materials 2,000$             

19,550$       

Proposed Additions

Wages Funding
Source

COLA (Non Contractual Non School Employees $27,000 R&A
DPW and Contracted Dept. Heads $21,000 R&A
Police Overtime $33,715 R&A

$81,715
Budgeted Expenses

Board of Health 766$                R&A
Agricultural Commission 981$                Free Cash
Transfer Station Bags 5,000$             R&A
Land Use 616$                R&A

7,363$         



Select Board Minutes                                                     3                                                            March 2, 2021 
 

He explained the committee’s rationale behind their decisions. 
 

Next, Ludwig reviewed the small warrant articles for FY22.  
 

 
 
Lucy Wallace asked when they expect the Governor to finalize the state budget. Town Administrator Tim 
Bragan estimated by the end of June and possibly sooner depending on what happens with federal 
funding.  
 

Ludwig and Bragan expect future budgets to be challenging as well. They acknowledged the town has a 
structural budget problem that cannot continue to be solved by cutting into department budgets. The 
time has come to prioritize needs versus wants because without more revenue these issues will persist. 
Everyone was in agreement if an override will be necessary with future budgets the discussions and 
explanations need to start now. Ludwig proposed a working group to begin strategizing how to provide 
the services the community expects. Bragan said the budget will be finalized the first week of April. 

 
Minutes  
By a roll call vote, Wallace – aye, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke –aye, the board 
voted unanimously to approve minutes of 2/16, as presented.  

 
Verizon Easement for Hildreth Elementary School 
School Committee Chair SusanMary Redinger explained the Verizon line goes under the building 
therefore an easement is necessary in the event Verizon needs to gain access to the line in the future. By 
a roll call vote, Minar – aye, Wallace – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke – aye, the board 
voted unanimously to approve the easement for Verizon as described on the diagram under HES. 
 
Town Administrator Report  
Covid-19 Vaccination Update: 
A letter is being sent to the Governor and Public Health Secretary from the NABOH communities 
expressing displeasure with their guidelines for setting up regional vaccination sites and that we in this 
area still do not have a site that is local to the NABOH district.  There is an effort to have the Select 

Article Title Amount Board/Dept. Funding Source

Tree triming 20,000$    DPW R&A

Bare Hill Pond Testing 5,000$      BOH R&A

Field Maintenance 20,000$    Park and Rec R&A

Merit Pay 35,000$    Personnel Board R&A

Architect COA 45,000$    COA Free Cash

Bromfield House 50,000$    Select Board Free Cash

Total 175,000$  



Select Board Minutes                                                     4                                                            March 2, 2021 
 

Boards in the district endorse a support document as well.  As you can see we are still pushing for a 
regional vaccination site in the Nashoba Valley area.  There is hope with the approval of the Johnson and 
Johnson vaccine and with more vaccines being available that the Governor will change his stance on the 
requirements for regional collaboration vaccination sites. By a roll call vote, Wallace – aye, Minar – aye, 
Maiore – aye, Sklar –aye, von Loesecke –aye, the board voted unanimously to sign support letter to the 
Governor. 
 

The new timeline for the appointment process is moving forward and Executive Assistant Julie Doucet is 
doing fine work with juggling this adjusted timeline and getting the Town Report out too. 
 

An age restricted (55+) Condominium Home at 10C Trail Ridge that will be filled by lottery and a copy of 
the attached notice is on our website.   

 

The Personnel Board met on Monday and discussed their recommendation for what a Merit increase 
would be provided that it is funded and they determined that 1% would be the maximum amount an 
eligible employee could receive. The potential cost of this is $19,561 which is almost half of what the 
placeholder was for the Merit Pay small warrant article. The COLA of 1.4% is already in the proposed 
budget numbers. 
 

Budget Update:   
Since the last Finance Committee meeting (2/24/2021) the only change in the budget is that mentioned 
in the prior bullet regarding the Personnel Board and Merit Pay.  This change would reduce the original 
estimate by $15,439 and thus increase the final number. This means that the current estimate, and let 
me stress current estimate, for the surplus is $50,815.   
 

On the State level the lottery has recently changed their estimate for the current year (FY21) upward by 
$45,000,000.  This will have an impact on the current year lottery aid if this does indeed become reality 
by the end of June.  The House will start deliberation on the Governor’s proposed budget in a few 
weeks. 
 

Town Hall has reopened to the public for appointments on the 1st, will open to limited capacity on March 
22, and will be open completely on April 5th.  All of these continue to utilize social distancing, face masks, 
and hand sanitizer.  The potential issues we see are what happens with the variants and thus the 
number of infected individuals and the fact that with individuals being vaccinated having problems with 
individuals not wanting to wear masks or socially distance.  The key for me is that the staff and public 
stay safe.  We have not had a covid positive person at Town Hall and this is due to our diligence and 
safety measures. Unlike some of my counterparts, who will wait until their staff can get vaccinated to 
open Town Hall, Tim believes we can do this safely.  Not all employees are on board with this thought 
and balancing many opinions with safety issues is key.  One main employee issue is that anyone who is 
sick or required to quarantine will have to use their PTO or take time as unpaid if they do not have the 
time. 
 
Lucy Wallace and Stu Sklar questioned why employees would be punished (by having to use PTO or go 
unpaid) if they have to quarantine. Wallace thought it uncaring especially for an employee to be forced 
to go without pay considering what we have all been through over the past year. HR Director Marie 
Sobalvarro said there had been instances in other town departments of employees claiming covid 
exposure when not exposed in order to take time off.  . She believes the reopening of town hall will 
dramatically increase the risk to staff and, therefore, precautions should be in place to assure everyone’s 
safety. Kara Minar worries this could incentivize employees to not do the right thing if they may lose 



Select Board Minutes                                                     5                                                            March 2, 2021 
 

critical wages. Von Loesecke understood PTO (Paid time off) time can be used for sick or time off and if 
necessary those employees who can work remotely have that option to work and not use PTO. 
Sobalvarro expressed disappointment the families’ first reimbursement was not extended as that 
provided two weeks of pay for any employee required to quarantine.  After more discussion it was 
obvious the board members were in favor of finding a different way to address quarantine requirements 
for staff. Bragan and Sobalvarro will work out other options. 
 
Finally, this report will be renamed to “Staff Update and Report”.  Having it read “Town Administrator’s 
Report” makes it look like an individual is responsible for the content and in fact this is a team effort and 
thus the new title.  
 
Discuss Planning Board articles for spring/fall Annual Town Meetings 
Planning Board liaison Rich Maiore said the Planning Board has been working hard and expect to bring 
the senior housing bylaw and two amendments to the accessory apartment bylaw to the spring town 
meeting. They have conducted surveys seeking ample feedback. He explained their plan for the spring is 
too tight up the senior bylaw definitions, come back in the fall and then again next spring to finalize the 
bylaw. They believe doing this in a more pragmatic way be a better approach. Maiore said emphasis 
should be on the progress instead of the process. The board members were supportive of the articles for 
the spring town meeting. 
 
Stretch code support letter 
The board members had questions and required more information on this item therefore it was decided 
to delay any decision until the next meeting when the Energy Advisory Committee will be present.  
 
Select Board Reports 
Rich Maiore said the Bromfield House Committee will have a recommendation for the next meeting. 
 
By a roll call vote, Wallace –aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, von Loesecke – aye,  
the board voted unanimously to enter into executive session at 9:00pm as per MGL 30A Sec. 21.3 to 
discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open an open meeting will have a 
detrimental effect on the government’s bargaining or litigating position. Also, to conduct strategy 
sessions in preparation for negotiations with non-union personnel; to actually conduct collective 
bargaining and contract negotiations with non-union personnel. The Board will reconvene into open 
session only to adjourn. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:30pm. 
 
Documents referenced: 
CPC recommendations – dated 2.25.2021 
Herb House study – dated Jan 2021 
FinCom recommendations – dated FY22 
Verizon easement – plan dated 4.26.2020 & easement for recording 
HEAC draft support stretch code – no date 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 14  
 

 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 
between the Towns of Harvard, Hudson, Bolton, Boxborough, Littleton, Lancaster and Stow, by 
and through each town’s Board of Selectmen, hereafter referred to individually as a 
“Municipality” and collectively as the “Municipalities;” the Hudson Municipal Affordable 
Housing Trust, by and through its Board of Trustees, hereinafter referred to as the “Trust,” with 
no such Selectman or Trustee having personal liability; and the Devens Enterprise Commission 
and MassDevelopment Devens, by and through its duly authorized signatories, hereinafter 
referred to as “Devens,” with no such Selectman or Trustee having personal liability, 
commencing this __1rst day of July  2020, as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, the Municipalities and Devens desire to share the services and costs of a 
common Regional Housing Consultant (“RHC”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Hudson, through its Hudson Municipal Affordable Housing 
Trust and the administrative support of the Hudson Planning & Community Development 
Department, is willing and capable of acting as the lead Municipality (the Town of Hudson 
acting through the Trust being referred to in this Agreement as the “Lead Municipality”) in 
procuring, and overseeing such Consulting Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Municipalities has authority to enter into this Agreement 
pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A; the Trust has authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to G.L. 
c. 44, §55C; and Devens has authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to G.L. c. 498 Acts 
of 1993. The authorizing vote of each Municipality’s Board of Selectmen, the Trustees of the 
Trust, and the MassDevelopment Devens Vice President for Operations and the Director/Land 
Use Administrator for the Devens Enterprise Commission is also appended hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

Town of Harvard, duly authorized by its Select Board 
Town of Hudson, duly authorized by its Board of Selectmen 
Hudson Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund, duly authorized by its Board of 
Trustees 
Town of Bolton, duly authorized by its Board of Selectmen 
Town of Boxborough, duly authorized by its Select Board  
Town of Littleton, duly authorized by its Board of Selectmen 
Town of Lancaster, duly authorized by its Board of Selectmen 
Town of Stow, duly authorized by its Board of Selectmen 
Devens Enterprise Commission and MassDevelopment Devens, duly authorized by its 
Commissioners (DEC) and Board (MassDevelopment) 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipalities, the Trust, and Devens, in mutual consideration 

of the covenants contained herein, intending to be legally bound, agree under seal as follows: 
 
1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above. 

The term of this Agreement shall expire three (3) years from the date set forth above for all 
parties, unless sooner amended or terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may be 



Page 2 of 14  
 

renewed in three (3) year increments by an extension duly authorized by the Municipalities 
pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, the Trust pursuant to G.L. c. 44, §55C, and Devens pursuant to G.L. 
c. 498 Acts of 1993, as applicable to each entity. Any Municipality, the Trust, or Devens may 
withdraw from the Agreement as defined below. 
 

2. Lead Municipality. During the Term of this Agreement, the Town of Hudson, 
acting as the Lead Municipality through the Trust, shall oversee the RHC. The Town of Hudson, 
through its standard procurement practices, through the Trust, shall contract with a suitable RHC 
to provide the housing administrative services to all the participating Municipalities and Devens 
as described in Section IV: “Project Overview, Scope of Work, & Deliverables” (p.8-15) of the 
Request for Proposals for MAGIC Regional Housing Consultant Services (“RFP”) issued 
publicly on __April 20, 2020__________, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein. 
 

3. Duties. During the Term of this Agreement, the RHC shall perform the housing 
administrative services described in the RFP pursuant to a contract entered into by the Lead 
Municipality with the RHC (“RHC Contract”).  

 
4. Fee Structure. The Municipalities and Devens have identified the need for 

services from the RHC in an approximate annual allocation of hours as indicated in Exhibit A, 
Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type, attached and incorporated herein, as derived from the 
RFP. The Municipalities and Devens acknowledge that Monitoring Services and Regional 
Activities (listed in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type), are base contract 
services (the “Base Contract Services”). As part of this Agreement and the RHC Contract, 
participating Municipalities and Devens may also avail themselves of additional local support in 
the amount of hours specified in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type under 
“Local Support”. The executed RHC Contract shall have a fixed amount not to exceed the hours 
so designated in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type.  
 

5. Appropriation. Upon signing of this Agreement, each Municipality and Devens 
shall appropriate or shall have available through available funds held in its own Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund a minimum amount equal to the Base Contract Services for Monitoring 
Services and Regional Activities as expressed in the RHC Contract plus the administrative fee 
for the Lead Municipality of $350 per year per Municipality and Devens, and a maximum 
amount not to exceed the total price identified in the RHC for the given Municipality or Devens. 
Any RHC hours, desired by individual Municipalities or Devens in excess of the amount of 
hours specified in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type, shall first be pre-
approved by the requesting Municipality or Devens as applicable, the RHC, and the Lead 
Municipality, and shall not exceed 25% of the allotted hours in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated 
Hours by Service Type, pursuant to G.L. c. 30B. 
 

6. Payment. The Town of Hudson as Lead Municipality shall quarterly invoice the 
Municipalities and Devens for the preceding quarter with payment due within thirty (30) days of 
the invoice date for work actually performed and billed by the Consultant; and the Municipalities 
and Devens shall make such payments to the Lead Municipality pursuant to the RHC Contract.  

 



Page 3 of 14  
 

7. Yearly Adjustments. The annual allocation of hours in Exhibit A, Table 2: 
Estimated Hours by Service Type shall be reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, annually, three 
(3) months prior to the end of each fiscal year. The Town of Hudson as Lead Municipality shall 
provide to all Municipalities and Devens a record of the actual hours of services provided to each 
Municipality and Devens, and make any adjustments necessary for the following fiscal year.  
 

8. Addition of New Entities to Agreement. Any entity, municipal or otherwise, not a 
part of this Agreement may petition the parties involved in this Agreement to join the 
Agreement. Petitions shall be made no later than six (6) months prior to the end of each fiscal 
year and the Municipalities and Devens shall vote on the request no later than three (3) months 
prior to the end of the fiscal year. In order to approve the addition of a new entity to the 
Agreement, no less than a super majority of the Municipalities and Devens must approve the 
addition. New entities may only officially join the Agreement and begin receiving services from 
the RHC at the beginning of a fiscal year.  

 
9. Termination. Any Municipality or Devens other than the Town of Hudson as 

Lead Municipality, by a vote of its respective authorizing Board, may withdraw from and 
terminate this Agreement at the end of any fiscal year with the provision of at least six (6) 
months prior written notice to the Lead Municipality. No such termination shall affect any 
obligation of indemnification that may have arisen hereunder prior to such termination. Upon 
such termination, the Lead Municipality shall prepare full statements of outstanding unpaid 
financial obligations under this Agreement and present the same to the terminating Municipality 
or Devens for payment within thirty (30) days thereafter. The Town of Hudson as Lead 
Municipality, by a vote of its Board of Selectmen, and the Hudson Municipal Affordable 
Housing Trust, by vote of its Board of Trustees, may together terminate this Agreement upon the 
provision of at least two (2) months prior written notice to the participating Municipalities and 
Devens. After termination of this Agreement, the Town of Hudson as Lead Municipality shall 
remain liable to the participating Municipalities and Devens for any portion of the payments 
received not earned. Any Municipality or Devens may withdraw at the end of any fiscal year in 
which the municipal legislative body or Devens equivalent bodies have not appropriated funds 
sufficient to support that municipality’s or Devens’ participation in the subsequent fiscal year. In 
such an event, the municipality or Devens shall give as much notice to other subscribers to this 
Agreement as the circumstances allow. 

 
10. Steering Committee. There shall exist an Intermunicipal Steering Committee 

comprised of one (1) representative from each Municipality and Devens, who shall be appointed 
by the appropriate appointing authority of the Municipality and Devens. The Committee shall 
meet as needed, generally on a quarterly basis. The RHC, with direction from the Town of 
Hudson as Lead Municipality, shall prepare and send to each municipality a quarterly status 
report prior to the quarterly meeting.  

 
11. Conflict Resolution. The Advisory Committee may hold additional meetings to 

discuss and resolve any conflicts that may arise including, but not limited to, disagreements 
regarding the needs of each Municipality and Devens, and changes to the annual allocation of 
hours as indicated in Exhibit A, Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type. Any 
recommendations made to the Planning & Community Development Director overseeing the 



Page 4 of 14  
 

RHC must be made by a majority vote. Any unresolved issues shall be decided by the Executive 
Assistant (Chief Administrative Officer) of the Town of Hudson. 

 
12. Financial Safeguards. The Town of Hudson as Lead Municipality shall maintain 

separate, accurate, and comprehensive records of all services performed for each of the 
Municipalities and Devens hereto, and all contributions received from the Municipalities and 
Devens. The Town of Hudson as Lead Municipality shall issue a financial report for each fiscal 
year to each of the Municipalities and Devens by December 31st of the following fiscal year. 

 
13. Assignment. None of the Municipalities or Devens shall assign or transfer any of 

its rights or interests in or to this Agreement, or delegate any of its obligations hereunder, 
without the prior written consent of all of the other Municipalities and Devens. 

 
14. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only in writing pursuant to a vote 

by all Municipalities, and the Trust, duly authorized thereunto. 
 
15. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, or if any such term is so held when applied to 
any particular circumstance, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any 
other provision of this Agreement, or affect the application of such provision to any other 
circumstances, and the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected and shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 

17. Headings. The paragraph headings herein are for convenience only, are no part of 
this Agreement, and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
18. Notices. Any notice permitted or required hereunder to be given or served on any 

Municipality shall be in writing signed in the name of or on behalf of the Municipality or Trust 
giving or serving the same. Notice shall be deemed to have been received at the time of actual 
receipt of any hand delivery or three (3) business days after the date of any properly addressed 
notice sent by mail as set forth below:  

 
 

Town of Hudson 
 Hudson Board of Selectmen 
 c/o Thomas Moses, Executive Assistant  
 78 Main Street 
 Hudson, MA 01749 
 

Hudson Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
c/o Jack Hunter, Planning & Community Development Director 

 78 Main Street 
 Hudson, MA 01749 



Page 5 of 14  
 

 
Town of Harvard 
  Harvard Select Board 
  c/o Timothy P. Bragan 
  13 Ayer Road 
  Harvard, MA 01451 
 
Town of Bolton 
  Bolton Board of Selectmen 
  c/o Erica Uriarte, Town Planner 
  663 Main Street 
  Bolton, MA 01740 

 
Town of Boxborough  

 Boxborough Select Board 
c/o Mary Nadwairski, Planning Department Assistant 

 29 Middle Road 
 Boxborough, MA 01719 

 
Town of Littleton 
  Littleton Board of Selectmen 

 c/o Maren Toohill, Town Planner 
  37 Shattuck Street 
  Littleton, MA 01460 
 
Town of Lancaster 
  Lancaster Board of Selectmen 
  c/o Orlando Pacheco 
  701 Main Street 
  Lancaster, MA 01523 
 
Town of Stow 
  Stow Board of Selectmen 
  c/o Jesse Steadman, Town Planner 
  380 Great Road 
  Stow, MA 01775 
 
Devens Enterprise Commission 
  Director/Land Use Administrator 
  c/o Peter Lowitt, FAICP 
  33 Andrews Parkway 
  Devens, MA 01434 
 
MassDevelopment Devens 
  Senior Vice President Devens Operations 
  Jessica Strunkin  33 Andrews Parkway 



Page 6 of 14  
 

  Devens, MA 01434 
 
19. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between 

the Municipalities and the Trust concerning the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior 
agreements and understandings. There are no other agreements or understandings between the 
Municipalities and the Trust concerning the subject matter hereof. Each Municipality and the 
Trust acknowledges that it has not relied on any representations by any other Municipality or the 
Trust or by anyone acting or purporting to act for another Municipality or the Trust or for whose 
actions any other Municipality or the Trust is responsible, other than the express, written 
representations set forth herein. 
 
 
WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 

TOWN OF HUDSON 
By its Board of Selectmen 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 

 



Page 7 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 

Hudson Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
 

______________________ 
      Kevin Santos, Chair 
 



Page 8 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above.  
 
TOWN OF HARVARD 
By its Select Board 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 

 



Page 9 of 14  
 

 
WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 

 
TOWN OF BOLTON 
By its Board of Selectmen 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 

 



Page 10 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
TOWN OF BOXBOROUGH 
By its Select Board 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 

 
 



Page 11 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
TOWN OF LITTLETON 
By its Board of Selectmen 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 
 



Page 12 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
TOWN OF STOW 
By its Board of Selectmen 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 



Page 13 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
DEVENS ENTERPRISE COMMISSION  
By its Commissioners  

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 
__________________________________ 

 



Page 14 of 14  
 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
      MASSDEVELOPMENT DEVENS 
      By its Board 

 
_______________________________________ 



PRICE PROPOSAL
Assabet Regional Housing Consortium 

May 19, 2020

Submitted by Metro West Collaborative Development, Inc.

Bolton Boxborough Hudson Littleton Stow Devens Harvard Lancaster Total

Local Support* 25.5 60 35 12 36 12 10 20 210.5

Regional Activities 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 96

Monitoring 25 35 65 25 45 15 23 40 273

62.5 107 112 49 93 39 45 72 579.5

$75 hourly rate $4,688 $8,025 $8,400 $3,675 $6,975 $2,925 $3,375 $5,400 43,463$              
Seventy-five 

dollars Forty-three thousand, 

four-hundred, sixty-

* based on the RFP estimates; not to exceed without written consent of both parties three dollars



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Town of Hudson 

 
 

Request for Proposals 
for  

Consultant Services 
for the 

Assabet Regional Housing Consortium 
 
 
 

Due Date: May 20,2020 
Due Time: 1:00 PM EST 

 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hudson 
78 Main Street, Hudson MA 01749 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Table of Contents 

LEGAL NOTICE ............................................................................................................................ 2 
Notice of Request for Proposals ..................................................................................................... 3 
Section I: RFP Process Timeline .................................................................................................... 4 
Section II: Proposal Checklist ......................................................................................................... 5 
Section III: General Information & Proposal Submission Requirements ....................................... 6 
Section IV: Project Overview, Scope of Work, & Deliverables ..................................................... 9 
Section V: Proposal Preparation, Evaluation & Selection ............................................................ 17 
Section VI: Terms and Conditions ................................................................................................ 24 
 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

LEGAL NOTICE 
Towns of Hudson (lead), Bolton, Boxborough, Littleton, Devens, 

Stow, Harvard, & Lancaster  Request for Proposals – Housing 
Consultant 

The Town of Hudson (lead), Planning and Community Development Department is seeking 
qualified contractors/consultants to provide regional housing consultant services for the Towns 
of Hudson (lead), Bolton, Boxborough, Harvard, Lancaster, Littleton, Devens, & Stow . A full 
bid package with specifications will be available Wednesday, April 29, 2020 at 10:00 AM in the 
Planning and Community Development Department, 78 Main Street, Hudson, MA 01749 or by 
email to Jack Hunter at jhunter@townofhudson.org. Questions/RFI’s may be directed to 
jhunter@townofhudson.org. A Pre-Bid Conference will be held on Wednesday May 13, 2020 at 
10:00AM at Hudson Town Hall, 3rd FL Conference Room, 78 Main St., Hudson, MA 01749 or 
by video conference if necessary. All bids are due to the Office of the Executive Assistant by 
May 20, 2020 by hard copy and email at 1:00 PM. At that time and place said bids shall be 
publicly opened. Any contract issued in response to a successful bid must be approved by the 
Hudson Board of Selectmen. As lead community, the Town of Hudson reserves the right to reject 
any or all bids, and reserves the right not to make an award on this contract if doing so is in the 
best interest of the participating Towns. 

mailto:@townofhudson.org.
mailto:jhunter@townofhudson.org


 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

Notice of Request for Proposals 

Description: The Town of Hudson (lead), Chief Procurement Officer, invites Qualified 
Proposers to submit proposals to provide regional housing consultant services. 
The full scope of work is attached herein in Section IV. 

 
RFP Packages: RFP Packages will be available beginning April 29, 2020 at 10:00 AM. Packages 

are available via email by contacting jhunter@townofhudson.org.. Packages may 
available for pick-up at the following address: 

Planning and Community Development 
Department78 Main Street 
Hudson, MA 01749 

 

Due Date & Time:  Proposals are due by 1:00 PM EST on May 20, 2020. The clock in the Executive 
Assistant’s Office shall be the sole determining factor of time. 

 
Place: RFP’s are to be submitted to: 

Executive Assistant’s Office 
Town Hall 
78 Main Street 
Hudson, MA 01749 

 

Pre-Bid Conference:  A pre-bid conference will be held on May 13, 2020 at 10:00AM in Conference 
Room B (3rd Floor) of Town Hall or by video conference if necessary. The 
purpose of the conference is to assist prospective proposers in the interpretation 
of the RFP, and other technical and contractual matters. This conference is not 
mandatory, but highly recommended. 

 

Questions/RFI’s: If you have questions about this RFP or have a request for information or 
clarification, please contact Jack Hunter at jhunter@townofhudson.org. All 
questions and requests for clarification must be received in writing by 4:00 PM 
on May 14, 2020. It is anticipated that a compilation of all questions and 
responses will be distributed via email to prospective proposers by 1:00 PM on 
May 15, 2020. 

 
Contract Info: Unless otherwise specified, the Town of Hudson Standard general Contract 

shall be used, a draft of which is enclosed herein. (See Section VIII.) 
 

Project Period: The Town endeavors to expedite all contracts within a timely fashion. Typically a  
contract will be awarded within sixty (60) days of the proposal opening if not 
sooner, and services under the contract will commence on Immediately 
thereafter. Such services are expected to be completed within 360 days of the 
contract award. The Town, at its sole election, may renew this contract for two 
additional one-year terms. 

mailto:@townofhudson.org.
mailto:@townofhudson.org.


 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Section I: RFP Process Timeline 

April 29, 2020 RFP legal notice appears in Goods & Services Bulletin. 

April 30, 2020 RFP legal notice appears in the Hudson Sun. 

April 29, 2020 RFP available at 10:00 AM 

May 13, 2020 Pre-proposal conference at 10:00 AM. 

May 14, 2020 
Last day to submit questions or requests for clarification. All 
questions must be submitted in writing via email to 
jhunter@townofhudson.org by 5:00 PM. 

May 15, 2020 Last Addendum issued 

May 20, 2020 
Proposal due date. Deadline for proposals is 1:00 PM EST. 
The clock in the Executive Assistant’s Office shall be the 
sole determining factor of time. 

May 21, 2020 - May 25, 2020 
Selection Committee reviews proposals and selects most 
highly advantageous proposal; commences interview of 
proposer providing most advantageous proposal. 

June 16, 2020 Notification of Award 

_________ (Exact date TBD) Project kick-off meeting with Selection Committee. 
 

mailto:jhunter@townofhudson.org


 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Section II:  Proposal Checklist 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope with the RFP Title and the Consultant’s name 
and address clearly indicated on the envelopes. It is mandatory that price proposals and non-price 
proposals be submitted separately. Failure to submit separate proposals will result in rejection of 
the proposal. The Consultant shall not make any reference to the price proposal elsewhere in 
other documents submitted. An electronic copy of the non-price proposal must also be included 
in the envelope. 

A.  Non-Price Proposal Envelope
1. Exhibit A - Proposal Signature Page (provided) 
2. Non-Price Proposal 
3. Exhibits C – F - Certifications (provided) 
4. References 
5. Please submit one unbound original and 4 bound copies of the non-price proposal in a 

sealed envelope marked in the lower left corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – 
Regional Housing Consultant - Non-Price Proposal.” 

6. One (1) electronic copy of the proposal on CD or USB memory stick 
B. Price Proposal Envelope 

1. Exhibit B - Price Proposal Page(s) (provided) 
2. Please submit one unbound original price proposal in a sealed envelope marked in the 

lower left corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – Regional Housing Consultant – 
Price Proposal.”   



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

Section III: General Information & Proposal Submission Requirements 
This is a Request for Proposals (RFP) to provide regional housing consultant services to the 
Towns of Hudson (lead), Bolton, Boxborough, Devens, Harvard, Lancaster, Littleton, & 
HudsonHudson. 
Please read this entire document before responding or submitting questions. Thank you for your 
interest and cooperation! 
Competitive sealed proposals for the services specified or emailed proposals if necessary will be 
received by the Town of Hudson, at the specified location, until the time and date cited. 
Proposals must be in the actual possession of the Town on or prior to the exact time and date 
indicated above. LATE PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED. 
It is mandatory that price and non-price proposals be submitted in separate sealed envelopes. 
A. Submission Requirements (if necessary electronic submissions for all proposals will be 

entertained): 
• One unbound original Price Proposal in a sealed envelope marked in the lower left 

corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – Regional Housing Consultant – Price 
Proposal” as well as the Proposer’s name. The Proposer shall not make any reference to 
said price proposal elsewhere in other documents submitted hereunder. The Chief 
Procurement Officer will open the Price Proposal after the interview process has been 
completed. 

• One unbound original and 4 bound copies of the Non-Price Proposal in a sealed 
envelope or box marked in the lower left corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – 
Regional Housing Consultant - Non-Price Proposal” as well as the Proposer’s name. 
Proposal must be complete submission as outlined in the Scope of Work. 

• Proposals must include Exhibits A – F, the Proposal signature page, Price Proposal 
signature page, and all applicable Certifications as provided in this RFP. 

• References as specified in the Scope of Work. 
• Any exceptions taken to the conditions or specifications cited herein must be clearly 

stated on a separate page of the proposal. 
• One (1) electronic copy of the non-price proposal only is also required, on a CD using a 

widely accessible software format 
B. General Information 

• Anyone who intneds to submit a Proposal must contact the Town directly and 
specifcally request a copy of this RFP, unless such company was sent a copy directly 
from the Town. The Town has a responsibility for maintaining a control list of all 
potential Proposers. 

• Failure to submit Price and Non-Price proposals in separate sealed envelopes will result 
in rejection of the proposal. 

• Proposals must be submitted on the proposal-contract forms provided. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

• This RFP is exempt from the requirements Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 30B, 
which requirements shall not apply. 

• Material submitted in response to this RFP will not be considered confidential under the 
terms of the Massachusetts Public Records Law. 

• The contract is expected to be awarded within sixty (60) days of this proposal opening 
(a sample contract is enclosed with the RFP). This RFP as well as the successful 
Proposer’s response will become part of the contract; 

• If any changes are made to this RFP, an addendum will be distributed to all Proposers 
who have received the RFP through the Town of Hudson; 

• A Proposer may correct, modify, or withdraw a proposal by written notice if received 
by the Town prior to the time and date set for the proposal opening. Proposal 
modifications must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly labeled “Modification 
No._____” Each modification must be numbered in sequence and must reference the 
original RFP. After the proposal opening, a Proposer may not change any provision of 
the proposal in a manner prejudicial to the interests of the Town or fair competition. 
Minor informalities will be waived or the Proposer will be allowed to correct them. .If a 
mistake and the intended correct wording are clearly evident on the face of the proposal 
document, the mistake will be corrected to reflect the intended correct meaning and the 
Proposer will be notified in writing; the Proposer may not withdraw the proposal. A 
Proposer may withdraw a proposal if a mistake is clearly evident on the face of the 
proposal document, but the intended correct wording is not similarly evident; 

• Individuals are encouraged to submit proposals. Individuals who submit proposals will 
not be subject to requirements that are only applicable to businesses such as authorized 
signatory and financial stability certifications; 

• Proposal prices must remain firm for ninety (90) days after the proposal opening; 
• All proposals must be signed by appropriate, authorized individual or individuals, e.g. 

if the Proposer is a partnership, by the name of the partnership, with the signature of 
each general partner. If the Proposer is a corporation, it must be signed by the 
authorized officer whose signature must be attested to by the Clerk/Secretary of the 
corporation and the corporate seal affixed, or appropriate certificate of authorization. 

• Written addenda issued will be emailed or faxed to all parties that the Town of Hudson 
is aware have requested documents using the contact information provided to the Town. 
Absence of “failure” messages electronically transmitted from addressee’s site will 
serve as confirmation of delivery of addenda. Proposers should contact Kerin Shea via 
e-mail, phone, or fax if they believe an addendum has not been received. 

• As lead community, the Town of Hudson reserves the right to cancel all or part of this 
solicitation. The issuance of this solicitation does not imply any commitment to 
purchase any product or services from any Proposer. As lead community, the Town of 
Hudson reserves the right to reject all proposals and waive informalities. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

• A Selection Committee made up of Town of Hudson staff and a representative from 
each participating community will evaluate the proposals and recommend a Proposer 
for award by the Town of Hudson. 

• Any contract issued in response to a successful proposal must be approved by the Town 
of Hudson Board of Selectmen. As lead community, the Town of Hudson reserves the 
right not to make an award on this contract if doing so is in the best interest of the 
participating Towns. The named Towns also reserve the right, individually, to not 
proceed with joint participation in this contract. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

Section IV: Scope of Work and Deliverables 

A. Project Context 
The seven participating towns of the Assabet Regional Housing Consortium are interested and 
motivated to preserve their affordable housing stock and to explore ways to create new 
affordable housing for a number of compelling reasons. 

• Communities want to achieve the state 10% mandate for affordable housing, as 
administered through the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD).  

• Communities want to expand the housing options for low and moderate income residents. 
• Communities want to preserve public subsidies, such as funds, zoning bonuses or public 

resources).  
The task of managing the affordable housing inventory is not a specific assignment for municipal 
staff. Due to the infrequency of the tasks, the complexity of the regulatory requirements and the 
many options available for local initiatives, maintaining the required technical skill for in-house 
staff is difficult. Communities often turn to independent private housing consultants for 
assistance on specific projects or on-going general support. 
B. Goals and Objectives 
The purpose of this RFP is to jointly procure technical housing assistance for the participating  
communities, and select a service provider who can demonstrate the experience and capacity 
necessary to deliver the services described below. The successful Consultant will be the one who 
best meets the Minimum Evaluation Criteria described in Section V. The service provider could 
be a private consulting firm, a non-profit organization, a public housing authority or other 
knowledgeable organization. 
The Towns have the following goals and objectives for this service: 
1. Preserve existing restricted units by pro-active monitoring so that the municipality becomes 

aware of any violations or pending affordable housing issues. 
2. Provide easier access to affordable housing opportunities for residents and make them aware 

of resources to assist them. 
3. The lines of communication are strengthened with the state subsidizing agencies for local 

projects. 
4. Knowledgeable and technical expertise is available for consultation. 
5. The Town has access to “best practices” for their local initiatives. 
 
The SHI – oriented snapshot of these seven communities is shown below. This shows the SHI as 
of September 2019, with pending projects below. 
 
 
 
 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

SHI by type in participating communites 

Table 1           
        

  Bolton Boxboro Harvard Hudson Lancas
ter 

Littleto
n Stow Devens 

Public 
Housing    0   

> 92         

          

DDS Units   0     11 21 4   

Other 
Rental 28 244 75    172 392 146   

Ownership 33 23  38 97 – 
98 27 25 35 27 

Total 
Current SHI 
Units 

61 267 113  916 250 438 185   

Current SHI 
% 3.5% 12.95% 5.7%  11.50

% 9.83% 12.74% 7.40% 25.00% 

                  
Pending 
Units 10 0 51  N/A   35 4 98 

Total with 
Pending 
Units 

71 267  164 N/A 250 473 189 125 

Pending 
SHI % 4.1% 12.95  8.28 N/A 9.83% 13.73% 7.56% 

10.09%, 
+17 

workforc
e 

restricted 

C. Scope of Services 
There are three main types of services sought as part of this RFP which correspond to hourly 
estimates for service provided by each community:  

• Local Support  
• Monitoring Services 
• Regional Activities 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

Flexibility in Hourly Allocation 
It is expected that the final contract will include an hourly rate multiplied by the Consultant’s 
estimate of hours need for Monitoring Services, Regional Activities Services, and a variable 
amount of local support, based upon the estimated number of hours identified by the 
municipalities. Due to the nature of changing needs in response to unexpected real estate 
development and new regulatory requirements, it is further expected that the seven communities 
will have the ability to change and adjust the allocation of hours within an agreed upon 
framework specified in the contract. 
1. Local Support (Hourly Contract) 
The Local Support category of work is a critical service of the consultant, providing value-added 
services to each municipality focused on assisting with specific projects, including locally 
sponsored unit creation, development and retention. These services will vary from town to town 
as needed, almost on an a-la-carte basis, and should be estimated on an hourly basis per type of 
activity. The local support provides value-added responsibilities focusing on assisting specific 
projects and locally sponsored unit creation development, administration, and retention. While 
the level of delivery of these desired services will vary, the successful Consultant should be able 
to deliver this breadth of service. An estimate of each community’s hourly support needs are 
located in for 2020 is provided in Table 2 below. 

Table 2: Estimated Hours by Service Type 

 
Local Support 

Regional 
Activities* Monitoring Total 

Bolton 25.5 12 25 47 
Boxborough 60 12 35 92 
Devens 12 12 15 39 
Harvard 10 12 23 45 
Hudson 35 12 65 112 
Lancaster 20 12 40 92 
Littleton 12 12 25 49 
Hudson 36 12 45 93 

TOTAL 200.5 96 273 569 
 

a) Project Consultation (Assist with specific development projects and unit creation)  
This service offering provides assistance for discreet site-specific projects typically initiated by a 
private developer as a friendly 40B and/or projects with which a municipality is collaborating 
with a private or not-for-profit developer. Projects could also be sponsored by the local 
municipality. Activities could include: 

• Assist Town Boards and developers evaluate parcels or Town-owned property and 
soliciting developer interest; 

• Facilitating site and conceptual plan review, project concepts and designs; 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

12 | P a g e  
 

• Preparing or reviewing project pro-forma budgets; 
• Analyzing developer projects using locally adopted rules, State guidelines and regulation, 

best practices; 
• Reviewing finalized plans with regard to the affordable component, including unit mix, 

disbursement, cost, governance, schedule, marketing; 
• Interacting with DHCD and Subsidizing Agency 
• Providing comments on the Regulatory Agreement, and other local agreements as 

appropriate. 
• Develop pro-forma deed restrictions for municipally sponsored projects 
• Preparing Local Preference juistification;  

b) Develop Municipal Housing Resident Assistance Programs (Program Development,Materials, 
Implementation) 
This service provides support in creating resident assistance programs such as down 
payment assistance, small housing rehabilitation grants or capital improvement programs, 
rental assistance programs, mortgage price buy-down programs or any other locally defined 
initiatives to assist new or existing residents. Activities include developing the program, 
guidelines including eligibility requirements, funding determination, development of 
application materials, and implementation assistance. Additional tasks could include: 

• Preparing Local-preference justification; 
• Offering specific training programs for residents such as first-time homebuyers 

courses, personal financial management classes, foreclosure avoidance classes, etc. 
c) On-site Support for Staff, Boards and Committees  

This service provides on-site support to local staff, Boards and Committees in the above 
services. Activities include attending meetings with presentation materials. The amount of 
meetings and on-site support will vary by community. 

d) Community Outreach and Planning 
This service provides support to local staff, Boards and Committees for planning and 
community outreach. Activities include preparing Housing Production Plans in accordance 
with DHCD requirements, and assisting with local policy initiatives.  

e) Locating Eligible Buyers and Renters 
This service provides the municipality and its properties access to ready renter and ready 
buyer lists for unit leasing and resale. Activities include determining options for hard to sell 
units, developing marketing plans per regulation and guidelines, performing outreach and 
marketing units, qualifying applicants and certifying eligibility, administering lotteries, and 
assisting applicants through occupancy. This activity requires specialized services and 
training and may be required to be contracted for separately. 

2. Monitoring Services (Base Contract)  
The delivery of Monitoring Services and upkeep of each community’s affordable housing 
database is the base element of the project. The estimated number of hours to complete the 
Monitoring Services deliverables will be supplied to each of the seven communities, and should 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

13 | P a g e  
 

be calculated as an hourly rate multiplied by the consultant’s estimate of hours to provide 
services associated with each task. Administrative management of the project is folded into the 
delivery of Monitoring Services, including but not limited to data management, and response to 
resident inquiries by phone and writing in each of the participating municipalities. A table 
outlining the current and pending number of SHI units for each community is located in Section 
IV B Table 1. The Monitoring Services ensure and enforce compliance of existing affordable 
housing restrictions with the goal of preserving the affordable units. It is useful to understand 
that the state monitoring expectations are in the process of changing, placing a greater emphasis 
on compliance certification by the responsible parties. This may have the effect of requiring 
additional efforts by the municipalities than is currently being done. 
Monitoring Services also include identifying specific local requirements for local programs and 
restrictions. This effort results in the ongoing implementation of the Annual Monitoring Plan of 
the seven participating Towns. The monitoring is reflected in continuous updates to each Town’s 
housing database to reflect any status changes, and store relvant documents to each unit as they 
become available. The Annual Monitoring Plan is developed based on the projects and units 
regulated in the municipality with activities specific to ownership units and rental units, with the 
objective to confirm that the development and/or owner is compliant with the affordable housing 
restrictions. The document inventory and individual unit data, along with the Annual Monitoring 
Plan, is updated throughout the term of service as new projects are formed, new units are created, 
units are bought and sold, and refinancing is transacted.There are many tasks and activities under 
the Monitoring Services umbrella: 
a) Maintain and Update Central Repository, Database & Plan  

In 2013 the participating communities contracted a consultant for the creation of an online 
repository (dropbox) of project specific legal documents. These documents include initial 
zoning decisions (Special Permit, Comprehensive Permit, other), Regulatory Agreements 
(both homeownership and rental), individual unit deeds for ownership units, and other 
information such as mortgages or liens, land disposition agreements, 40B Cost Certification 
Reports and other project specific information.  
The legal framework of each project, generally found in the Regulatory Agreement and 
Owner Deeds, has been reviewed and detailed conditions analyzed. The identification of the 
role and responsibility of the municipality is identified. The units managed by public 
agencies – the local housing authority or Department of Developmental Services generally 
do not require any supplemental monitoring or municipal oversight. 
An ongoing task for Year 1 is the maintenance and update of the created depository. The 
information the Consultant must update takes the form of individual files of the documents, 
a consolidated inventory of each development/project complete with project address/contact 
information, unit size mix, affordability levels, and DHCD SHI identifications. 
Each project is reconciled to the DHCD SHI listing, and required updates are made to 
DHCD so that the municipalities have the benefit of all eligible units being “counted” on the 
SHI. This might also include verifying the number of units for DDS/DMR units. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

14 | P a g e  
 

This effort results in a current and relevant central repository and an accurate listing on 
DHCD’s SHI. 

b) Annual Monitoring of Ownership Units: 
This annual monitoring task is to confirm that the owner of record is compliant. It is 
important to note that the form of affordable housing restriction can vary greatly depending 
on the date of recording and the regulatory program. Generally though, the restriction 
requires that the owner live in the unit as their primary residence and that they obtain 
approval for refinancing or transfer. This effort starts with the research at the appropriate 
Registry of Deeds to review any new information for the unit – such as refinancing (more 
common) or transfers (less common). Annually, the Consultant must send self-certification 
letters to each owner requiring return confirmation of the restrictions. This annual 
correspondence with the owners is a useful opportunity for the municipality to reiterate the 
deed restriction requirements and to point owners to resources that can assist them to 
continue to maintain their property – both physically and financially. 
Owners of affordable housing units must follow a prescribed process when refinancing or 
selling their unit. Owners and realtors initiate this process by contacting the municipality. 
The Consultant will field these calls and inquiries, and assist the municipality in reviewing 
all documents related to refinance. Review of appraisals prepared by a third party, and 
verification of procedures is an initial step with which the Consultant will assist. The initial 
inquiries may lead to refinancing approvals required by the municipality, or triggering the 
resale provisions. The Consultant will prepare any municipal correspondence required in 
this process. Such outcomes often result in the drafting of the refinancing approval for the 
municipality, or the letter of intent to exercise (or decline) the municipal right of first 
refusal. Loan subordination agreements may also need to be reviewed (typically initially 
prepared by owner’s attorney). 
In the case of ownership units where a rehabilitation loan was originally granted by the 
municipality, a similar process will be followed. Consultant will assist in reviewing 
refinancing requests, processing documents, preparing or reviewing mortgage discharges, or 
loan subordinations, and other related correspondence. 

c) Rental Units Tenant Compliance, Town is Monitoring Agent 
For rental units, where the municipality bears the responsibility of being the Monitoring 
Agent, the annual monitoring task is to confirm that the project is compliant. The effort for 
rental projects is mostly for the LIP projects. For these developments, the municipality is 
required to review the rents charged, review the certification of the tenants, review that the 
units are maintained, to ensure that tenant selection practices comply with Fair Housing 
laws, and to certify all the above to DHCD. 

d) Rental Units, Compliance Report, 3rd Party is Monitoring Agent 
For non-LIP projects, the level of this effort is more discretionary as the municipality 
generally has no identified responsibility. However, the municipality may wish to obtain a 
general certification from the project sponsor that they are in compliant with the 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

15 | P a g e  
 

requirements. For these projects, where the municipality is not the monitoring agent, the 
Consultant will endeavor to obtain copies of annual monitoring reports, produced by the 
legal monitoring agent, and review those reports to confirm the project is generally 
compliant. 

e) Resolve Discrepancies 
It is expected through this extensive review that compliance violations would be identified. 
These may be the result of misunderstood program guidelines, Fair Housing violations, 
general neglect or lack of oversight. They are not necessarily due to intentional violation. 
This effort results in the development of a list of compliance violations, with a proposed 
course of action, as well as certifications of compliance. 

3. Regional Activities 
Support for Regional Activities is comprised of various administration, education, outreach and 
coordination tasks associated with assisting the seven communities on projects identified as 
significant to all towns. These tasks have been prioritized to allow the consultant to estimate 
hourly allocation. It is expected that the Regional Activity priorities will evolve in response to 
the needs of the seven communities, as well as suggestions of relevant projects by the 
Consultant. 
a) Administration 

The Inter-Municipal Steering Committee will meet on a regular basis to review the project 
progress and discuss any issues. The consultant will attend all Inter-municipal steering 
committee meetings. At project start-up those activities may be more frequent. However, it 
is generally assumed that the steering committee will only need to meet on a quarterly basis. 
The Consultant will be responsible for issuing a quarterly update report to all communities 
detailing services performed and updating activities underway in each community. Detailed 
billing, with tasks per municipality, and reporting is anticipated under this item. 

b) Resident Support 
The consultant will be the main point of contact for residents seeking affordable housing 
services in any of the participating Towns. The Consultant will respond to such inquiries via 
phone and written correspondence, on an ongoing basis throughout the project duration. The 
Town of Hudson will arrange for a telephone number and correspondence address to be 
publicized to direct citizens to the Consultant. The Consultant will then be responsible for 
fielding inquiries, and replying to public correspondence that is general nature pertaining to 
the core services. 

c) Regional Projects 
The Consultant will be responsible for providing administrative and technical support for 
projects outlined by the seven communities. The Consultant will also be expected to utilize 
specific and relevant programmatic knowledge to suggest potential regional projects that 
could help the seven communities reach their collective goals. Below is a list of potential 
regional activities that the Consultant could be asked to lead or assist in administering. It is 
expected that no more than one or two such Regional Activities could be pursued in any one 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

16 | P a g e  
 

contract year due to limited capacity of the participating Towns and the focus on other core 
services provided by the Consultant. 

• Year 1 Priorities 
• Regional  forums to link Affordable Housing Trusts with local developers, 

state and federal agencies, funding resources and eligible residents. 
• Development of regional potentially eligible affordable buyer’s list 

o The Consultant will create a repository of potentially eligible buyers of 
affordble units to assist the participating municipalities with marketing 
of their combined affordable housing portfolio. 

o The Consultant will develop and investigate the availabilty of 
Emergency Assistnace resources for each communty. 

• Year 2 & 3 Priorities (subject to change based on regional needs) 
 Workshops on strategies for older adults interested in downsizing 
 Public outreach and education 
 Rental assistance programs 
 Other activities as defined by the participating communities or suggested by 

the Consultant. 
 Affordable unit marketing assistance, including the development of fact sheet 

templates 

D. Deliverables 
The Consultant shall deliver the following items at the completion of the Year 1 contract and 
these items shall become property of the respective community. 
Year 1 

• Maintenance and update of central document repository and accurate listing on DHCD’s 
SHI  

• Annual Montoring Plan 
• Maintenance of compliance list – certifications, violations (with course of action) 
• Creation of potentially eligible affordable buyers list 
• Paper and electronic copies of any formal correspondence or program materials prepared 

under the monitoring program or local support services portion of the contract. 
Years 2 & 3  

 Updates to any of the above items•  
 Annual Monitoring Review•  
 Compliance violation list (if any)•  
 Paper and electronic copies of any formal correspondence or program materials •

prepared under the monitoring program or local support service portion of the 
contract. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

17 | P a g e  
 

Section V: Proposal Preparation, Evaluation & Selection 
A. Proposals 
The consultant shall be required to submit separate hourly rates for the multiple work categories. 
A separate, mandatory price bid form is included elsewhere and shall be submitted in a signed, 
sealed envelope as part of the consultant’s submission. Any expenses for which the consultant 
wishes to be reimbursed shall be clearly identified on a separate sheet included in the sealed 
price proposal envelope. 
Proposals must be submitted on the forms provided, in accordance with all specified proposal 
submission requirements as specified in the Scope of Work. 
B. Competency of Proposers 
Only those Consultants who submit all forms and materials as required will be considered 
responsive and responsible. 
No proposal will be considered unless the CONSULTANT submitting the same shall furnish 
evidence satisfactory to the Town that he has the necessary equipment, ability, and financial 
resources to fulfill the conditions of the contract and specifications. Previous experience and 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT will be considered in awarding the contract. No contract 
will be awarded to any CONSULTANT who is in arrears to the Town upon debt or contract, or 
who is a defaulter as to surety or otherwise upon any obligation to the Town of Hudson.  
C. Withdrawal of Proposal 
Permission will not be given to withdraw or modify any proposal after the RFP deadline. 
D. Acceptance or Rejection of Proposal 
The Town reserves the right to accept proposals at any time within ninety (90) days after the 
same are received as provided. The CONSULTANT shall submit his proposal on the proposal-
contract forms if so provided. The Town reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and 
waive informalities. Any proposal deemed incomplete will be rejected outright for non-
responsiveness to the requirements of the RFP. 
E. Prices Bid 
Prices bid for the various items shall be stated both in figures and words in the appropriate 
spaces shown on the proposal form, and all proposals will be considered informal which contain 
items not specified in said form. 
F. Names of Proposers  
Each proposal must contain the full name and address of each person or company interested 
therein. In the case of a partnership, the name and address of each partner must be stated on the 
proposal form. The firm, corporate, or individual name must be signed by the CONSULTANT in 
the space provided for signature on the forms. In the case of a corporation, the title of the officer 
signing must be stated and the corporate seal must be affixed. In the case of a partnership, the 
signature of at least one of the partners must follow the firm name using the term “members of 
firm”. Individuals use the term “doing business as ______________________,” or “Sole 
Owner”. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

18 | P a g e  
 

G. Selection Criteria  
The Town believes that the selection of the most hightly advantageous offer for these services 
requires comparative judgment of factors in addition to cost. 
The Selection Committee shall determine a composite rating of Highly Advantageous, 
Advantageous, Not Advantageous or Unacceptable for each proposal reviewed. The Town 
reserves the right to conduct interviews and check references in order to better aid the Selection 
Committee in making its decision. After a composite rating has been determined for each 
proposal, the Chief Procurement Officer shall open and review the cost proposals and determine 
the most highly advantageous proposal, taking into consideration the ratings on all comparative 
evaluation criteria as well as cost. 
H. Determination of Best Price 
The Chief Procurement Officer shall open the Fee Proposal after receiving the final ranking of 
the Selection Committee and make a final determination of which proposal is in the best interest 
of the Town. Price alone will not be the determining factor in the awarding of a contract. The 
Town shall consider both the rating given to the CONSULTANT by the Selection Committee 
and the Fee Proposal in making the award. The final contract is subject to negotiation by the 
Town. 
The Town of Hudson expects to award the contract withing sixty (60) days after the date 
established for receiving the proposals. All proposals shall remain valid and acceptable for ninety 
(90) days from the last proposal due date. This time may be extended by mutual consent of 
selected Consultant and the Town. Upon award, the engagement must commence within ten (10) 
days of receipt of a Notice of Award by the selected Consultant. 
I. Proposing All or Any Items 
Consultants may propose on any or all items unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Work. 
J. Exceptions 
Any exceptions taken to the conditions or specifications cited herein must be clearly stated on a 
separate page of the proposal. 
K. Minimum Requirements 
At a minimum, Consultants must submit all materials requested in accordance with the exact 
specifications of this request for proposals. Consultants who meet these minimum criteria will 
have their proposals reviewed. Meeting minimum requirements does not mean that a Consultant 
will be selected for the project. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

19 | P a g e  
 

L. Preparation of Proposal 
1. The proposal shall detail the firm’s or individuals’ qualifications, experience and expertise. 

Proposal evaluation will include an examination of the Consultant’s qualifications, 
experience, project action plan and expertise in conducting similar work. 

a) Consultant shall provide a brief history of their firm, organization or relevant 
professional experience; 

b) Consultant shall list the number of current personnnel that it employs, if applicable 
c) Consultant shall detail the firm’s or their own experience with similar projects 

completed during the past three (3) or more years; 
d) Consultant shall provide a list of specific qualifications the Consultant has in 

supplying the services listed in this proposal, including professional degrees, 
designations, affiliations, certifications and/or licenses; 

e) Consultant shall submit the names and resumes and level of participation of staff 
particularly staff assigned as the lead coordinator to this engagement and their 
respective experience in these types of engagements if applicable; 

f) Consultant shall provide a list of a minimum of three (3) references from current 
and/or former clients for projects of similar size and scope. List shall include current 
contact information including client contact name, agency, address and phone number. 

2. The proposal must confirm the Consultant’s understanding of the RFP. The narrative portion 
and the materials presented in response to this RFP must contain the following information: 

a) A clear outline of the recommended approach to the project. Consultant shall provide 
a proposed plan for performing the overall work, including a timeline for major 
activities. Consultant shall provide a written schedule of deliverables, which should 
conform to the work items and timeline identified in the scope of work. 

b) Explain how the Consultant’s administrative process will ensure that appropriate 
levels of attention are given and that the work is properly performed. 

c) Consultant shall submit three (3) samples of its most relevant and recent work product. 
d) Consultant shall affirm financial stability of Consultant’s firm or organization, as 

applicable. 
3. General proposal elements (If necessary all proposal elements may be submitted 

electronically): 
a) All proposals must contain Exhibits A – F: the Proposal Signature page, Price 

Proposal Signature page, and all applicable Certifications provided.  
b)  Proposal must include check or proposal bond. 
c) Any exceptions ot this RFP stated on a separate page of the proposal. 
d) The proposal document must be submitted with an original ink signature by the person 

authorized to sign the proposal. 
e) Erasures, interlineations or other modifications in the proposal shall be initiated in 

original ink by the authorized person signing the offer. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

20 | P a g e  
 

f)  Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be calendar days unless otherwise 
indicated. 

g) It is the responsibility of all Consultants to examine the entire RFP packet and seek 
clarification of any item or requirement that may not be clear and to check all 
responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in preparing an offer 
confers no right of withdrawal after due time and date. 

h) Submit one (1) unbound original and 4 bound copies of the non-price proposal. 
i) Submit one (1) copy of the price proposal in a signed, sealed envelope. 
j) Consultants are also required to submit one (1) electronic copy of the non-price 

proposal on a CD, using a widely accessible software format. 
M. Education and Qualifications 
The CONSULTANT is responsible for ensuring the timely completion of all project objectives. 
The ideal candidate should have the demonstrated knowledge and background in the field of 
affordable housing. The preferred candidate will have a master’s or bachelor’s degree in public 
administration, planning, community development, or a closely-relaied field, and a minimum of 
five years of relevant experience. The CONSULTANT should also be proficient using Microsoft 
Office software programs including spreadsheets, databases, and presentations. Candidate must 
demonstrate the ability to work with and collaborate with multiple entities. 
N. Consultant minimum qualifications: 
1. Consultant must be an individual or an organization that has experience with affordable 

housing subsidy programs in Massachusetts. 
2. Consultant should have experience working with municipalities and/or Housing Boards, and 

familiarity with Town government in Masssachusetts. 
3. If the consultant is an individual, he/she must propose a team with depth and expertise to 

complete the required tasks. Legal ability or access to a real estate attorney on the 
Consultant’s team would be a plus. 

4. Consultants must have demonstrated ability to be effective communicator both orally and in 
writing and possess the capacity to deal tactfully with the public. 

O. RFP Evaluation 
Candidates who have met the minimum stated qualifications will be evaluated and ranked by the 
Selection Committee based on the criteria listed below. Proposals will be ranked on the 
following scale of maximum benefit to the Town: Highly Advantageous (HA - 3 points), 
Advantageous (A – 2 points), Not Advantageous (NA 1 point), or Unacceptable (U – 0 points). 
Any proposal that receives an “Unacceptable (U – 0 points). Any proposal that receives an 
“Unacceptable” rating for any of the criteria sections may be rejected out right. Consultants 
should be responsive to the requested information set forth in the RFP. Consultants submitting 
proposals deemed to be non-responsive shall be given a ranking of “Unacceptable.” 
In addition to the materials submitted within the proposal, the Selection Committee may ask for 
additional information or a clarification of any written responses. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

21 | P a g e  
 

The rankings done by the individual committee members for each proposal will be combined to 
determine an overall score for each Consultant. These scores will then be used to determine the 
initial ranking of the Consultants and to identify the top-ranking firms/individuals to be 
interviewed. Following interviews with finalists, the Selection Committee will conduct reference 
checks and then meet to discuss and agree upon final applicant rankings. Applicants will be 
interviewed during the selection process. 
The proposal submitted should specifically address the following evaluation criteria: 

1. Past Experience  
Past experience is calculated by the extent and suitability of consultant’s past work. Both the 
total number of projects and similarity of projects are relevant to this criterion. The amount 
of experience of the Consultant in both consulting with municipalities and experience with 
affordable housing projects in Massachusetts of similar size and scope will impact 
significantly on this evaluation factor. 

Highly Advantageous – The Consultant has provided verifiable evidence of having 
successfully completed at least five (5) or more similar housing consulting projects within 
the past ten (10) years or has worked in the field of affordable housing for five or more 
years. 
Advantageous - The Consultant has provided verifiable evidence of having successfully 
completed at least two (2) to four (4) similar housing projects within the past ten (10) 
years, or has worked in the field of affordable housing for 2 - 5 years.  
Not Advantageous – The Consultant has provided verifiable evidence of having 
successfully completed at least one ( 1) similar housing project within the past ten (10) 
years, or has worked in the field of affordable housing for 1 -2 years. 
Unacceptable - The Consultant has not provided verifiable evidence of having successfully 
completed any similar housing projects in the past ten (10) years, or has worked in the field 
of affordable housing for less than 1 year. 

2. Quality of Work 
The quality of work will be determined by examples provided. 

Highly Advantageous – Proposal includes five (5) or more examples of successful 
comparable projects. Work is exemplary and examples are impressive. Projects were 
delivered on time and on budget. 
Advantageous – Proposals includes two (2) to four (4) examples of successful comparable 
projects. Work is relevant and examples are good. Projects were delivered with desired 
outcomes. 
Not Advantageous – Proposal includes one (1) example of a successful comparable project 
or includes one or more examples of projects that are not of similar size or scope, or prove 
to be less than successful. 
Unacceptable – Proposal includes no comparable projects, or all projects cited prove to be 
less than successful. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

22 | P a g e  
 

3. Capacity 
Capacity will be measured by the depth and relevancy of team members and /or sub-
contractors. This criterion will consider who is on your project team and the skills those 
individuals will contribute to the project. Also judged will be the size of the firm relative to 
its present work-load. Key personnel should be immediately available to begin the project, 
as well as be available throughout the project process. 

Highly Advantageous – Résumés demonstrate exceptional qualifications of key staff 
within field (s) of affordable housing or similar field. Key personnel are immediately 
available to begin the project and are available throughout the project. 
Advantageous - Résumés demonstrate moderate qualifications of key staff within field (s) 
affordable housing or similar field. Key personnel are available to begin the project soon 
and may be available throughout the project. 
Not Advantageous – Résumés demonstrate very minimal qualifications of key staff within 
field (s) of affordable housing or similar field. Key personnel are not available any time 
soon to begin the project and may not be available throughout the project. 
Unacceptable – Résumés demonstrate key staff has no experience within field (s) of 
affordable housing or similar field. Key personnel are not available. 

4. Project Approach 
The project approach will be determined by the quality and depth of the proposal, and 
technical approach to the Scope of Work. The proposal should make appropriate reference 
to all items under the Scope of Work and Submission Requirements. 

Highly Advantageous – Proposal is viewed as an excellent response and describes indepth 
how all tasks will be accomplished. Consultant’s responses to tasks are clear, thorough, 
and timely. Innovative techniques and planning processes are presented. 
Advantageous – Proposal is viewed as an adequqte response and describes with some 
particularity how all tasks will be accomplished. Consultant’s responses provide minimal 
explanation for planning processes to meet standards requested. 
Not Advantageous – Proposal is viewed as a minimal response and describes generally 
how tasks will be accomplished. Proposal does not contain clear processes or timetables 
for completion of tasks. 
Unacceptable - Proposal is inadequate and addresses less than all tasks. 

5. Readiness to Proceed 
Readiness will be evaluated as follows: 

Acceptable – Able to begin upon execution of contract (within two weeks of Notice to 
Proceed) and complete entire scope within the projected time frame. 
Unacceptable – Unable to begin within 60 days of Notice to Proceed, or unable to 
complete entire scope of project. 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

23 | P a g e  
 

6. References 
The CONSULTANT will provide at least three references. References will be evaluated as 
follows: 

Acceptable 
Unacceptable 

7. Interview 
Interviews will likely be conducted with final candidates and evaluated as follows: 

Acceptable  
Unacceptable 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

24 | P a g e  
 

Section VI: Terms and Conditions 
A. Definitions 
The terms “PROPOSER”, “RESPONDENT” or “CONSULTANT” shall mean the corporation, 
partnership, or individual proposing or under contract to furnish the material, labor, and/or 
equipment listed in the Specifications of Scope of Work.  
The term “Town” shall mean the Town of Hudson, Massachusetts. 

Check or Proposal Bond - N/A 

Forfeiture of Check or Proposal Bond - N/A 
Contract Bond - N/A 
Payment Bond - N/A 
B. Workmen’s Compensation 
The CONSULTANT shall comply with the State Law, known as Workmen’s Compensation Act, 
and shall pay into the State Insurance Fund necessary premiums required by the Act to cover all 
employess working under the control of the Consultant and shall relieve the Town of Hudson 
from any costs due to accidents or other liabilities mentioned in said Act. He shall also furnish at 
the time of delivery of the contract, and at such other times as may be requested, the official 
certificate of receipt showing that the payments herein before referred to, have been made. 
C. Insurance 
At a minimum the following five insurance requirements must be met by all outside consultants: 
1. All consultants working for the Town of Hudson shall provide a Certificate of Insurance 

indicating coverage for Worker’s Compensation, in accordance with state regulation. The 
certificate shall name the Town as an additional insured. 

2. ALL consultants engaged in contracts in excess of $10,000 shall provide the Town with a 
Certificate of Liability Insurance for a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), 
naming the Town of Hudson as additional insured. 

3. Consultants engaged in work valued between $5,000 and $10,000 shall provide the Town 
with a Certificate of Liability Insurance for a minimum of $500,000 naming the Town of 
Hudson as additional insured. 

4. Consultants engaged in projects valued at less than $5,000 shall carry an appropriate amount 
of liability coverage, which shall be determined by the department head procuring the 
service. 

5. Copies of the Worker’s Compensation Certificates and the liability Insurance Policies must 
be presented by the successful Consultant before any contract is issued. 

6. Other Insurance requirements if applicable:______________________________ 
D. Payment for Services Rendered 
The payment schedule for this project will be on a reimbursement basis according to a 
deliverables schedule consistent with the price proposal and negotiated at the time a contract is 
signed. The price proposal should include the proposed payment schedule based on the project 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

25 | P a g e  
 

deliverables. Final payment will not be made until all deliverables have been received and 
approved by the Town. In no event shall payment be made in advance of the services provided. 
Invoices will be due and payable within 30 days following that in which deliveries are made, 
provided that all terms of the contract have been fulfilled to the full and complete satisfaction of 
the Town of Hudson. Payments may be made on a basis of estimated partial completion of work 
or delivery. 
E. Liability & Indemnification 
The CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless the Town of Hudson and all of 
the member communites of the Assabet Regional Housing Consortium and its officers and 
agents from all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, recoveries and judgments of every 
description, whether or not well founded in law, brought or recovered against it, by reason of any 
act or omission of said CONSULTANT, his agents or employees, in the execution of the contract 
or in consequence of insufficient protection, or for the use of any patented invention by said 
CONSULTANT and a sum sufficient to cover aforesaid claims may be retained by the Town 
form moneys due or to become due to the CONSULTANT under this contract, until such claims 
shall have been discharged or satisfactorily secured. 
F. Royalties and License Fees 
The CONSULTANT shall pay all royalties and license fees. The CONSULTANT herein agrees 
to assume and save the Town of Hudson, its officers and agents harmless from liability of any 
kind or nature whatsoever, arising out of the use by the Tow, its officers and agents of any 
appliance, apparatus or mechanism, which may be furnished or installed by the CONSULTANT 
under the terms of this contract including patent or copyright infringement, and to defend the 
Town from any and all such liabilities whether or not such claims are well founded in law. 
G. Duration of Contract 
The duration of the contract shall be for the period stated on the proposal-contract form, and 
shall include all material, equipment, and/or services ordered or delivered during the period. 
H. Taxes 
All prices quoted shall be for a definite fixed price unless otherwise specified in the Scope of 
Work, which price shall exclude Federal, State and other taxes to the extent that municipalities 
are exempt. 
I. Assignment of Contract 
The CONSULTANT who is awarded a contract shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or 
otherwise dispose of said contract, or his right, title or interest in or to the same, or any part 
thereof, without previous consent in writing from the Town of Hudson Board of Selectmen, 
endorsed on or attached to the contract. 
J. Purchases 
After a contract is signed it shall only become operative upon the delivery to the 
CONSULTANT of any order signed by the Town of Hudson of Selectmen and certified as to 
available funds by the Executive Assistant and the Director of Finance, and the town of Hudson 
shall only be obligated under the contract to the extent of such orders. The Town shall not be 



 

Town of Hudson  
78 Main Street 

Hudson, MA 01749 

 

26 | P a g e  
 

liable for any claims in the event that the total quantity of the material ordered under this contract 
should prove to be greater or less than the amount herein estimated. 
K. Certificate of Non-Collusion 
The CONSULTANT must certify that no official or employee of the Town of Hudson has any 
pecuniary interest in this proposal or in the contract which the consultant offers to execute or in 
expected profits to arise therefrom, unless there has been compliance with the provisions of 
M.G.L Chapter 43 Section 27, and that this proposal is made in good faith without fraud or 
collusion or connection with any other person submitting a proposal. A Certificate of Non-
Collusion (Exhibit C) must be signed and included. 
L. Attestation Clause  
Effective July 1, 1983, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue instituted the Revenue 
Enforcement and Protection Program. This program requries that all cities and towns obtain from 
a contractor/provider of goods, services or real estate space, an attestation stating that all the laws 
of the Commonwealth relating to taxes are being complied with by the provider. This attestation 
must be signed prior to the extending or issuing of a contract. Therefore, in order to facilitate the 
process of this program, the Town of Hudson requires that this clause be signed and included as 
part of the contract proposal package. The awarding of a proposal will be contingent upon the 
signed affidavit (Exhibit D). 
M. Certificate of Authority 
Each proposal must be signed by an individual authorized to submit said proposal, and a 
Certificate of Authority (Exhibit E) must be submitted for each proposal submitted on behalf of 
any Corporation proposing services hereunder. 
N. Equal Opportunity Certification 
The Town of Hudson is an equal opportunity employer. Further, it is the policy of the Town to 
ensure that minority and women business enterprises (W/MBE) have the maximum opportunity 
to participate in providing the services called for in this RFQ, whether as a principal contractor 
or subcontractor. Therefore, the CONSULTANT must agree to take affirmative action to insure 
that applicants for employment are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, or national origin. 
An Equal Opportunity Certification (Exhibit F) must be signed and included. 



Dear Alice, Lucy, Kara, Rich, Stu, and Julie, 
 
We are writing to ask if we can run the Townwide Roadside Trash Cleanup  
this year.  Our target dates are Thursday April 29 to Sunday May 2nd,  
2021.  We will use Signup Genius again, and have residents sign up for  
road segments.  We have already gotten many requests to run the Cleanup  
this year.  The costs will be minimal as we bought bags for 2020 that  
went unused (and Paul has been reimbursed). 
 
We have spoken to Tim Kilhart at DPW.  His staff do not have the same  
COVID-19 concerns they had last year.  Tim K has told us that one truck  
is currently not in service, but the Cleanup is still 6 weeks out.  We  
will work with him as the time gets closer if he is short a vehicle. 
 
In the past we have encouraged neighbors to form groups and to do the  
Cleanup together.  This year we will discourage neighborhood groups and  
encourage COVID-19 safe practices.  We have also planned a way to  
streamline supply handout (to take place on Wed April 28 and Sat May  
1).  We have identified a parking area with adequate space to handout  
supplies and stay physically distanced. 
 
If you need us to, we would be delighted to join the next SB meeting to  
discuss this with you.  As already mentioned, many people have asked us  
if we can do the Cleanup this year.  We know that we can do this in a  
COVID-19-safe manner, and we think that residents would really  
appreciate a socially-distanced, townwide, community activity like this.  
 
Julie, my apologies, I do not yet have all of the new email addresses  
for SB members, you might need to forward this.  Please let us know if  
the SB would like us at next week's meeting. 
 
Thank you for your support, 
 
Paul Green, Jessie Panek, Brian McClain, Barbara Romero, and Libby Levison, 
The Townwide Cleanup and Garlic Mustard pull organizers 
 
 
 
 



Town of Harvard Revenue Ideation Committe Charge 

March 3, 2020 

Background 

• Town of Harvard is facing long-term financial challenges  
• Residential property taxes are nearly all (93%) of the town’s revenue source 
• This approach is not sustainable given the town’s financial obligations to deliver 

basic level of services to its residents 

The Need 

• The Town must identify additional revenue sources to diversify its revenue sources 

The Charge 
 

• Research, vet and prioritize potential non-tax revenue sources for the Town based on 
the town’s existing assets. This may include but not limited to:  

• The sale of town land 
• The sale of surplus buildings and equipment 
• Leasing of town property for use of solar or wind power  
• Leasing of cell towers on town land 
• Securing corporate sponsorship of Town assets—ballfields, trails, etc. 
• Other opportunities as identified by the committee 

 
• Conduct benchmark research of comparable towns (size, assets, geography) to gain 

insights and ideas on approaches to non-tax revenue sources   
 

• Develop and deliver an initial report to the Select Board by September 2021 outlining 
research methodology; prioritized recommendations for new sources of revenue, 
considerations and estimated revenue projection for each option, potential timing and 
recommended next steps/action items 

 

Committee Composition 
The committee will include 7 members made up of the following:  

• One member of Finance Committee 
• One member of SelectBoard 
• One member of School Committee 
• One member of Park & Recreation 
• One member of Energy Advisory Committee 
• Two residents at large 


	SELECT BOARD                    AGENDA              Tuesday, March 16, 2021                       6:30pm       The Select Board Regular Meeting is being held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive...
	SELECT BOARD                    AGENDA              Tuesday, March 16, 2021                       6:30pm       The Select Board Regular Meeting is being held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive...
	UpperTH ProWebinar is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
	Topic: Select Board
	Time: Mar 16, 2021 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)
	Join Zoom Meeting
	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81460211136?pwd=UWlxQzM0clVha1BuaVJQT0ZOeTZOUT09
	Meeting ID: 814 6021 1136
	Passcode: 426148
	Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kX5Z9bsj
	Charger Draft Locations_2-26-21.pdf
	Charger Bromfield Location
	Charger Gen Store Level 2
	Charger Library Location
	Charger Town Hall Location

	2020_IMA Regional Housing Consultant-BOXBOROUGH-COMPLETE.pdf
	Section I: RFP Process Timeline
	Section II:   Proposal Checklist
	A. Non-Price Proposal Envelope
	1. Exhibit A - Proposal Signature Page (provided)
	2. Non-Price Proposal
	3. Exhibits C – F - Certifications (provided)
	4. References
	5. Please submit one unbound original and 4 bound copies of the non-price proposal in a sealed envelope marked in the lower left corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – Regional Housing Consultant - Non-Price Proposal.”
	6. One (1) electronic copy of the proposal on CD or USB memory stick

	B. Price Proposal Envelope
	1. Exhibit B - Price Proposal Page(s) (provided)
	2. Please submit one unbound original price proposal in a sealed envelope marked in the lower left corner with the words: “Town of Hudson – Regional Housing Consultant – Price Proposal.”


	Section III: General Information & Proposal Submission Requirements
	A. Submission Requirements (if necessary electronic submissions for all proposals will be entertained):
	B. General Information

	Section IV:  Scope of Work and Deliverables
	A. Project Context
	B. Goals and Objectives
	C. Scope of Services
	1. Local Support (Hourly Contract)
	a) Project Consultation (Assist with specific development projects and unit creation)
	b) Develop Municipal Housing Resident Assistance Programs (Program Development,Materials, Implementation)
	c) On-site Support for Staff, Boards and Committees  This service provides on-site support to local staff, Boards and Committees in the above services. Activities include attending meetings with presentation materials. The amount of meetings and on-si...
	d) Community Outreach and Planning This service provides support to local staff, Boards and Committees for planning and community outreach. Activities include preparing Housing Production Plans in accordance with DHCD requirements, and assisting with ...
	e) Locating Eligible Buyers and Renters This service provides the municipality and its properties access to ready renter and ready buyer lists for unit leasing and resale. Activities include determining options for hard to sell units, developing marke...

	2. Monitoring Services (Base Contract)
	a) Maintain and Update Central Repository, Database & Plan
	b) Annual Monitoring of Ownership Units:
	c) Rental Units Tenant Compliance, Town is Monitoring Agent
	d) Rental Units, Compliance Report, 3rd Party is Monitoring Agent
	e) Resolve Discrepancies

	3. Regional Activities
	a) Administration
	b) Resident Support
	c) Regional Projects


	D. Deliverables

	Section V:  Proposal Preparation, Evaluation & Selection
	A. Proposals
	B. Competency of Proposers
	C. Withdrawal of Proposal
	D. Acceptance or Rejection of Proposal
	E. Prices Bid
	F. Names of Proposers
	G. Selection Criteria
	H. Determination of Best Price
	I. Proposing All or Any Items
	J. Exceptions
	K. Minimum Requirements
	L. Preparation of Proposal
	1. The proposal shall detail the firm’s or individuals’ qualifications, experience and expertise. Proposal evaluation will include an examination of the Consultant’s qualifications, experience, project action plan and expertise in conducting similar w...
	a) Consultant shall provide a brief history of their firm, organization or relevant professional experience;
	b) Consultant shall list the number of current personnnel that it employs, if applicable
	c) Consultant shall detail the firm’s or their own experience with similar projects completed during the past three (3) or more years;
	d) Consultant shall provide a list of specific qualifications the Consultant has in supplying the services listed in this proposal, including professional degrees, designations, affiliations, certifications and/or licenses;
	e) Consultant shall submit the names and resumes and level of participation of staff particularly staff assigned as the lead coordinator to this engagement and their respective experience in these types of engagements if applicable;
	f) Consultant shall provide a list of a minimum of three (3) references from current and/or former clients for projects of similar size and scope. List shall include current contact information including client contact name, agency, address and phone ...

	2. The proposal must confirm the Consultant’s understanding of the RFP. The narrative portion and the materials presented in response to this RFP must contain the following information:
	a) A clear outline of the recommended approach to the project. Consultant shall provide a proposed plan for performing the overall work, including a timeline for major activities. Consultant shall provide a written schedule of deliverables, which shou...
	b) Explain how the Consultant’s administrative process will ensure that appropriate levels of attention are given and that the work is properly performed.
	c) Consultant shall submit three (3) samples of its most relevant and recent work product.
	d) Consultant shall affirm financial stability of Consultant’s firm or organization, as applicable.

	3. General proposal elements (If necessary all proposal elements may be submitted electronically):
	a) All proposals must contain Exhibits A – F: the Proposal Signature page, Price Proposal Signature page, and all applicable Certifications provided.
	b)  Proposal must include check or proposal bond.
	c) Any exceptions ot this RFP stated on a separate page of the proposal.
	d) The proposal document must be submitted with an original ink signature by the person authorized to sign the proposal.
	e) Erasures, interlineations or other modifications in the proposal shall be initiated in original ink by the authorized person signing the offer.
	f)  Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be calendar days unless otherwise indicated.
	g) It is the responsibility of all Consultants to examine the entire RFP packet and seek clarification of any item or requirement that may not be clear and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in preparing an of...
	h) Submit one (1) unbound original and 4 bound copies of the non-price proposal.
	i) Submit one (1) copy of the price proposal in a signed, sealed envelope.
	j) Consultants are also required to submit one (1) electronic copy of the non-price proposal on a CD, using a widely accessible software format.


	M. Education and Qualifications
	N. Consultant minimum qualifications:
	1. Consultant must be an individual or an organization that has experience with affordable housing subsidy programs in Massachusetts.
	2. Consultant should have experience working with municipalities and/or Housing Boards, and familiarity with Town government in Masssachusetts.
	3. If the consultant is an individual, he/she must propose a team with depth and expertise to complete the required tasks. Legal ability or access to a real estate attorney on the Consultant’s team would be a plus.
	4. Consultants must have demonstrated ability to be effective communicator both orally and in writing and possess the capacity to deal tactfully with the public.

	O. RFP Evaluation
	1. Past Experience  Past experience is calculated by the extent and suitability of consultant’s past work. Both the total number of projects and similarity of projects are relevant to this criterion. The amount of experience of the Consultant in both ...
	2. Quality of Work The quality of work will be determined by examples provided.
	3. Capacity Capacity will be measured by the depth and relevancy of team members and /or sub-contractors. This criterion will consider who is on your project team and the skills those individuals will contribute to the project. Also judged will be the...
	4. Project Approach The project approach will be determined by the quality and depth of the proposal, and technical approach to the Scope of Work. The proposal should make appropriate reference to all items under the Scope of Work and Submission Requi...
	5. Readiness to Proceed Readiness will be evaluated as follows:
	6. References The CONSULTANT will provide at least three references. References will be evaluated as follows:
	7. Interview Interviews will likely be conducted with final candidates and evaluated as follows:


	Section VI:  Terms and Conditions
	A. Definitions
	B. Workmen’s Compensation
	C. Insurance
	1. All consultants working for the Town of Hudson shall provide a Certificate of Insurance indicating coverage for Worker’s Compensation, in accordance with state regulation. The certificate shall name the Town as an additional insured.
	2. ALL consultants engaged in contracts in excess of $10,000 shall provide the Town with a Certificate of Liability Insurance for a minimum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), naming the Town of Hudson as additional insured.
	3. Consultants engaged in work valued between $5,000 and $10,000 shall provide the Town with a Certificate of Liability Insurance for a minimum of $500,000 naming the Town of Hudson as additional insured.
	4. Consultants engaged in projects valued at less than $5,000 shall carry an appropriate amount of liability coverage, which shall be determined by the department head procuring the service.
	5. Copies of the Worker’s Compensation Certificates and the liability Insurance Policies must be presented by the successful Consultant before any contract is issued.
	6. Other Insurance requirements if applicable:______________________________

	D. Payment for Services Rendered
	E. Liability & Indemnification
	F. Royalties and License Fees
	G. Duration of Contract
	H. Taxes
	I. Assignment of Contract
	J. Purchases
	K. Certificate of Non-Collusion
	L. Attestation Clause
	M. Certificate of Authority
	N. Equal Opportunity Certification



